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	ANTI-CORRUPTION SCORE CARD

PUBLIC SECTOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS

[COUNTRY NAME]

[PROJECT OWNER NAME]




	PURPOSE:  This scorecard is designed to provide an assessment of anti-corruption governance in relation to public sector construction projects in a particular country or in relation to a particular project owner.  The scorecard measures a number of factors including perceptions of the extent to which corruption takes place in public sector construction projects, and the extent to which effective systems are implemented by government, public sector project owners and the private sector to help prevent such corruption.  Weighted ratings are given to each factor, and the cumulative score is derived from all the individual factor scores to give an overall project owner or country score.  This is a subjective tool, and is open to different opinion.  It is not a perfect measure.  However, it is designed to identify actual or perceived deficiencies in a project owner’s or country’s anti-corruption processes in relation to public sector construction projects, and therefore to encourage improvements to be made.

METHOD:  Each person completing the scorecard should consider each question, and select the coloured box which most closely reflects that person’s view on the question.  The score obtained from the appropriate coloured box should then be recorded in the right hand “Score” column.  Upon completion of all questions, the cumulative scores in the “Score” column should be totalled.  The larger the number of people who complete the scorecard, the more representative and accurate the sample will become.  In the case of completion of scorecards by multiple people, an average score can be obtained.

Some countries may have one public sector project owner which manages all public sector construction projects in that country.   However, most countries will have different public sector project owners which are responsible for different sectors (e.g. electricity, water, roads) or different regions.  Sections A to D apply mainly to the operations of a specific public sector project owner (i.e. tender and project management controls).  Sections E to I apply mainly to the overall country environment in which the project takes place (i.e. consents and permits, rule of law, press freedom).  If there is a wide discrepancy in performance between different public sector project owners in the same country (e.g. if one project owner is considered to have good anti-corruption procedures, and another is considered to have poor procedures), then a separate assessment should be done for each project owner.  If a separate assessment is done for each project owner, it is likely that sections A to D (the project owner specific sections) will differ between project owners, but that sections E to I (the general environment sections) will be likely to be the same, as the general environment is likely to apply to all projects, regardless of which public sector project owner is implementing them.
OUTCOME:  The total points available are 500.  The higher the score, the better the country’s performance in preventing corruption in the construction sector.
  


	
	
	
	
	
	
	Score

	A.  ADVERSE  INFLUENCE

This section is designed to measure the perceived extent of adverse influence on the selection, design, award and execution of public sector construction projects.  “Adverse influence” means influence which is intended to benefit a minister, politician, public official, political party, or a favoured bidder rather than the public.  This adverse influence may be exercised, for example, as a result of the payment of a bribe, or in order to extort a bribe, or in connection with a vested interest.

	
	
	
	
	
	

	1. Is there adverse influence in project selection?

E.g. a minister, politician or public official requires or supports the building of a project or a type of project, which appears primarily to favour him/her or his/her associates, rather than the public interest.

	10  Very unlikely
	7 Unlikely
	5 Sometimes happens
	2  Common
	0  Very common
	

	2. Is there adverse influence in the project planning/approval process?

E.g. a minister, politician or public official prevents planning permission or project approval being given in circumstances where it should have been given, or requires planning permission or project approval to be given in circumstances where it should not have been given.

	10  Very unlikely
	7 Unlikely
	5 Sometimes happens
	2  Common
	0  Very common
	

	3. Is there adverse influence in project design or specification?

E.g. a minister, politician or public official requires the design or specification to name or favour one bidder, to the detriment of the other bidders.

	10  Very unlikely
	7 Unlikely
	5 Sometimes happens
	2  Common
	0  Very common
	

	4. Is there adverse influence in tendering?

E.g. a minister, politician or public official requires a bidder to be qualified to bid, or to be awarded a contract, when it did not meet the pre-qualification requirements, or was not the best evaluated bidder.

	10  Very unlikely
	7 Unlikely
	5 Sometimes happens
	2  Common
	0  Very common
	

	5. Is there adverse influence in project execution?

E.g. a minister, politician or public official requires that a contractor, supplier  or consultant receives a payment, variation, extension of time, approval or other benefit in circumstances where it should not have done so, or requires that a contractor, supplier  or consultant does not receive a payment, variation, extension of time, approval or other benefit in circumstances where it should have done so.

	10  Very unlikely
	7 Unlikely
	5 Sometimes happens
	2  Common
	0  Very common
	


	B.  TENDERING FOR PUBLIC SECTOR PROJECTS

This section is designed to assess the effectiveness of measures which are in place during tender phase which can help prevent corruption.


	
	
	
	
	
	

	6. Are the pre-qualification and tender systems fair and reasonable?

Are the systems which enable a bidder to pre-qualify to bid for public sector projects, or to win a tender for a public sector project, fair and reasonable? This could be a pre-qualification system, or tender evaluation, under which bidders have to satisfy the project owner according to financial, technical, quality, safety and other non-price parameters. A fair system would be genuinely open to all qualifying bidders, would be assessed as far as possible on fair, transparent and objective criteria, and would be free from abuse by the parties administering the system, or by third parties.

	10  Very fair
	7  Reasonably fair
	5  Sometimes fair, sometimes unfair
	2  Unfair
	0  Very unfair
	

	7. Are the tender submission timings fair and reasonable?

Is sufficient time given to bidders to allow them properly to prepare their bids for public sector projects?  Or are bids sometimes called for on unreasonably tight timetables which could as a result allow a bidder an unfair advantage (e.g. a bidder with prior knowledge of the bid requirements may be able to meet the tender timetable when others cannot).

	10  Very fair
	7  Reasonably fair
	5  Sometimes fair, sometimes unfair
	2  Unfair
	0  Very unfair
	

	8. Are tender conditions fair and reasonable?

Are the tender conditions for public sector projects fair and reasonable, in that they allow an equal opportunity to all appropriately qualified bidders to compete?  E.g. a condition is reasonable if it is designed to ensure that the bidders are capable of performing the works, but not if it is designed to exclude bidders who are appropriately qualified so as to increase the chances of one or more unfairly favoured bidders.

	10  Very fair
	7  Reasonably fair
	5  Sometimes fair, sometimes unfair
	2  Unfair
	0  Very unfair
	

	9. Is there a fair process for clarifying uncertainties in tender documents?

Is there a fair, reasonable and transparent process under which bidders can clarify any uncertainty in the tender documents prior to tender submission?


	10  Always
	7 Normally
	5  Sometimes
	2 Not normally
	0  Never
	

	10. Are tender openings transparent?
Are tenders for public sector projects opened in the presence of the bidders, and are the tender prices and other key requirements read out to the bidders present?

	10  Always
	7 Normally
	5  Sometimes
	2 Not normally
	0  Never
	

	11. Are tender evaluations fair and reasonable?

Are tender evaluations for public sector projects carried out in a manner which is fair and reasonable?  E.g. are tender evaluation points awarded in a manner which is as objective as possible? Are the members on the evaluation committees considered to be honest?

	10  Very fair
	7  Reasonably fair
	5  Sometimes fair, sometimes unfair
	2  Unfair
	0  Very unfair
	


	12. Are competitive tenders required?

Are competitive tenders involving at least three competing bidders required for all public sector projects?  

	10  Always
	7 Normally
	5  Sometimes
	2 Not normally
	0  Never
	

	13. Are tender procedures by-passed on questionable grounds?

Are tender procedures for public sector projects ever by-passed on grounds which are questionable?  E.g. by declaring unjustifiably that a project is an emergency purchase, and therefore does not require competitive tenders.

	10  Never
	7  Very infrequent
	5 Sometimes
	2  Common
	0  Always
	

	14. Are bribes demanded in return for the award of public sector construction contracts?


	10  Never
	7  Very infrequent
	5 Sometimes
	2  Common
	0  Always
	

	15. Is there a fair and reasonable appeals procedure?

Is there a fair and reasonable procedure under which a bidder which believes that it has unfairly lost an award can appeal the decision?

	10  Very fair
	7  Reasonably fair
	5  Sometimes fair, sometimes unfair
	2  Unfair
	0  Very unfair, or no procedure
	

	16. Is there victimisation of bidders which challenge an award?

Is there a perception that bidders which challenge an award to another bidder will be victimised on future bids (e.g. removed from the approved tender list). 

	10  Never
	7  Very infrequent
	5 Sometimes
	2  Common
	0  Always
	

	C.  EXECUTION OF PUBLIC SECTOR PROJECTS

This section is designed to assess the effectiveness of measures which are in place during project execution phase which can help prevent corruption.  While the following measures are not necessarily designed to prevent corruption, they can help prevent corruption.  While failure to implement these measures properly may not be due to a corrupt reason, it can be due to a corrupt reason, and can allow corruption to take place.  They are therefore corruption indicators.


	
	
	
	
	
	

	17. Is there a fair and reasonable procedure to issue variations?

Is there a fair and reasonable procedure under which a contractor, supplier or consultant which is supplying works, equipment, materials or services in relation to a public sector project can receive, have valued, and be paid for, a variation to the project scope of works?

	10  Very fair
	7  Reasonably fair
	5  Sometimes fair, sometimes unfair
	2  Unfair
	0  Very unfair, or no procedure
	

	18. Is the above variation procedure implemented fairly and reasonably in practice?


	10  Always
	7 Normally
	5  Sometimes
	2 Not normally
	0  Never
	


	19. Is there a fair and reasonable procedure to issue extensions of time and to award costs for delay and disruption?

Is there a fair and reasonable procedure under which a contractor, supplier or consultant which is supplying works, equipment, materials or services in relation to a public sector project can receive an extension of time to the project schedule and costs for delay and disruption in the event that it is delayed for reasons which are not its fault?

	10  Very fair
	7  Reasonably fair
	5  Sometimes fair, sometimes unfair
	2  Unfair
	0  Very unfair, or no procedure
	

	20. Is the above procedure for extension of time and award of costs implemented fairly and reasonably in practice?


	10  Always
	7 Normally
	5  Sometimes
	2 Not normally
	0  Never
	

	21. Is there a fair and reasonable procedure to deduct damages for delay?

Is there a fair and reasonable procedure under which the public sector project owner can deduct or receive damages from a contractor, supplier or consultant which is delayed in completing its works for reasons which are the fault of the contractor, supplier or consultant?

	10  Very fair
	7  Reasonably fair
	5  Sometimes fair, sometimes unfair
	2  Unfair
	0  Very unfair, or no procedure
	

	22. Is the above procedure for damages for delay implemented fairly and reasonably in practice?


	10  Always
	7 Normally
	5  Sometimes
	2 Not normally
	0  Never
	

	23. Is there a fair and reasonable procedure to certify the amount and quality of work or services undertaken and equipment and material supplied?

Is there a fair and reasonable procedure under which the public sector project owner can measure or assess the amount and quality of work or services undertaken and equipment and material supplied, and can then issue a certificate or document confirming the measurement or assessment?


	10  Very fair
	7  Reasonably fair
	5  Sometimes fair, sometimes unfair
	2  Unfair
	0  Very unfair, or no procedure
	

	24. Is the above certification procedure implemented fairly and reasonably in practice?


	10  Always
	7 Normally
	5  Sometimes
	2 Not normally
	0  Never
	

	25. Is there a fair and reasonable procedure for the public sector project owner to pay for work or services undertaken and equipment and material supplied?


	10  Very fair
	7  Reasonably fair
	5  Sometimes fair, sometimes unfair
	2  Unfair
	0  Very unfair, or no procedure
	

	26. Is the above payment procedure implemented fairly and reasonably in practice?


	10  Always
	7 Normally
	5  Sometimes
	2 Not normally
	0  Never
	

	27. Are bribes demanded in return for certificates and payments?
Are bribes demanded or accepted by the person who is responsible for issuing a variation, extension of time, work certificate, payment etc. on a public sector project in order to release the document or payment?

	10  Never
	7  Very infrequent
	5 Sometimes
	2  Common
	0  Always
	


	D.  ANTI-CORRUPTION MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS
This section is designed to assess the extent to which the public sector project owner and relevant private sector organisations have put in place anti-corruption management systems designed to prevent corruption within their own organisation.  These systems would include, for example, an anti-corruption code of conduct; a manager responsible for ensuring compliance by the organisation with the anti-corruption code; anti-corruption training for employees; controls over gifts and hospitality; controls over the use of cash; the requirement to undertake due diligence on business partners to assess the risk of them entering into a corrupt act on behalf of or against the organisation; a corruption reporting system etc.


	
	
	
	
	
	

	28. Does the public sector project owner, responsible for the award and management of public sector construction projects, have an anti-corruption management system in place within its own organisation?

	10  Always
	7 Normally
	5  Sometimes
	2 Not normally
	0  Never
	

	29. Do construction companies undertaking construction of public sector projects have anti-corruption management systems in place within their own organisation?

	10  Always
	7 Normally
	5  Sometimes
	2 Not normally
	0  Never
	

	30. Do consulting engineering firms undertaking design, management or other consulting services in relation to the construction of public sector projects have anti-corruption management systems in place within their own organisation?

	10  Always
	7 Normally
	5  Sometimes
	2 Not normally
	0  Never
	

	31. Does the public sector project owner require companies or firms working on its projects to have internal anti-corruption management systems in place as a condition of pre-qualification or award?  Alternatively, does the project owner give positive value in the tender evaluation to companies or firms working on its projects which have internal anti-corruption management systems in place?


	10  Always
	7 Normally
	5  Sometimes
	2 Not normally
	0  Never
	

	E.  OBTAINING CONSENTS AND PERMITS

This section is designed to assess the effectiveness of measures which are in place which can help prevent corruption in relation to the granting or consents and permits.  


	
	
	
	
	
	

	32. Are unofficial payments demanded or expected by public officials before they will issue a visa, or work permit?


	10  Always
	7 Normally
	5  Sometimes
	2 Not normally
	0  Never
	

	33. Are unofficial payments demanded or expected by public officials before they will issue planning permission?


	10  Always
	7 Normally
	5  Sometimes
	2 Not normally
	0  Never
	


	34. Are unofficial payments demanded or expected by public officials before they will issue approval of building design or construction?


	10  Always
	7 Normally
	5  Sometimes
	2 Not normally
	0  Never
	

	35. Are unofficial payments demanded or expected by public officials before they will issue customs clearance?


	10  Always
	7 Normally
	5  Sometimes
	2 Not normally
	0  Never
	

	F.  THREATS/EXTORTION

This section is designed to assess the effectiveness of measures which are in place in relation to preventing extortion or threats by police or gangs.  


	
	
	
	
	
	

	36. Are unofficial payments demanded or expected by police officers in return for letting vehicles pass road blocks, or in return for being released from prosecution for alleged or real traffic offences?

	10  Always
	7 Normally
	5  Sometimes
	2 Not normally
	0  Never
	

	37. Are payments demanded by gang members, on the basis that site staff or equipment will be damaged if the payments are not made?

	10  Always
	7 Normally
	5  Sometimes
	2 Not normally
	0  Never
	

	G.  ANTI-CORRUPTION LEADERSHIP BY PROFESSIONAL INSTITUTIONS AND BUSINESS ASSOCIATIONS
This section is designed to assess the extent to which anti-corruption leadership is provided by professional engineering institutions (those to which e.g. professional engineers, architects, quantity surveyors and other professions belong) and by business associations (those to which e.g. construction companies and consulting engineering firms belong). 


	
	
	
	
	
	

	38. Do professional institutions and business associations publicly speak out against corruption?


	10  Always
	7 Normally
	5  Sometimes
	2 Not normally
	0  Never
	

	39. Do professional institutions and business associations provide or recommend anti-corruption training for their members?


	10  Always
	7 Normally
	5  Sometimes
	2 Not normally
	0  Never
	

	40. Do professional institutions and business associations discipline their members who are found to have been involved in corruption? (e.g. by fining them or suspending or terminating their membership).

	10  Always
	7 Normally
	5  Sometimes
	2 Not normally
	0  Never
	


	H.  RULE OF LAW

This section is designed to assess the effectiveness of measures which are in place to uphold the rule of law.  This will include investigation, prosecution and the court system.  While the absence of an effective rule of law is not necessarily due to corruption, and does not necessarily cause corruption, it can be caused by corruption, and can allow corruption to take place unchallenged. The absence of an effective rule of law is therefore a corruption indicator.


	
	
	
	
	
	

	41. Is there a body which has the power to investigate and prosecute corruption?
This could be one body which both investigates and prosecutes, or there may be separate bodies, one of which investigates, and the other of which prosecutes.

	10.  Yes
	
	
	
	0  No
	

	42. How fair and independent is this body perceived to be in investigating and prosecuting corruption?
Does the body actually investigate and prosecute all corruption, even that involving members of the current political/government administration, and successful businessmen, or does it appear only to investigate and prosecute those who are out of political favour, or who have little influence?

	10  Very fair
	7  Reasonably fair
	5  Sometimes fair, sometimes unfair
	2  Unfair
	0  Very unfair; or no such body exists.
	

	43. How likely is it that a bribe or other factor (such as political pressure) could influence the conduct of members of this body?
E.g. could the payment of a bribe by a person or organisation to a member of this body prevent the body from investigating or prosecuting it?

	10  Very unlikely
	7  Unlikely
	5 Sometimes happens
	2  Likely
	0  Very likely; or no such body exists.
	

	44. Is there a court system which has the power to hear criminal and civil cases?

	10  Yes
	
	
	
	0  No
	

	45. How fair and independent is the court perceived to be in hearing cases?
Does the court make decisions on a fair and independent basis (even against members of the current political/government administration, and successful businessmen), or does it appear to make decisions only against those who are out of political favour, or who have little influence?

	10  Very fair
	7  Reasonably fair
	5  Sometimes fair, sometimes unfair
	2  Unfair
	0  Very unfair; or no court system exists.
	

	46. How likely is it that a bribe could influence the conduct of the court?
E.g. could the payment of a bribe by a person or organisation to a judge result in an award favourable to the payer?

	10  Very unlikely
	7  Unlikely
	5 Sometimes happens
	2  Likely
	0  Very likely; or no court system exists.
	


	I.  PRESS

This section is designed to assess how free the press is from government control, and how willing the press would be to report on alleged corruption by ministers, political parties, public officials and powerful businessmen.   A free, independent and confident press can be a valuable anti-corruption measure.


	
	
	
	
	
	

	47. How free is the press from government control?
Is the press in principle able to publish a report which alleges corruption by ministers, political parties, or public officials, or is it likely that any such report would be stopped before it is publicised?


	10  All press free from government control
	7  Most press free from government control
	5  Some press free from government control
	2  Almost all press government controlled
	0 Press entirely government controlled
	

	48. How free is the press from the control of one major business or rich individual?
Is the press in principle able to publish a report which alleges corruption by a leading business or rich individual, or is the control of the press by such business or rich individual such that any such report would be stopped before it is publicised?


	10  One business/

individual controls very minor part of press.
	7  One business/

individual controls approx 25% of press.
	5  One business/

individual controls approx 50% of press.
	2  One business/

individual controls approx 75% of press.
	0  One business/

individual controls all press.
	

	49. Does the press actually report on corruption?

	10  Very frequently
	7  Frequently
	5  Sometimes
	2  Hardly ever
	0  Never
	

	50. Does the press actually report on corruption involving currently serving ministers, political parties, or public officials, or involving leading businesses or rich individuals?

	10  Very frequently
	7  Frequently
	5  Sometimes
	2  Hardly ever
	0  Never
	

	TOTAL SCORE: (add up all scores in right hand “score” column)


	
	
	
	
	
	______

TOTAL


9

